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a | PREIFACE.

el vears o the Publisher of this vohinne conceived e ke ol preparing an histerweal work on the minst
A EER L NLLEN - ] ) )
pnrvelous vk e caties, Chicago, At an carly period i ahe progress of that undertaking, the fact
beeanie appistest that a fietory of the metropolis, o matter how esbaestive it might be an iself, could ot e
HTy . " . .

et 1o melade one e e st essentin] features of the social vt of the ety namelv, o desenption of the
N

. [ B - 13- o " e i “ . . Jiry . v s CHeLIVE-
rineren= sthnrien residenee villages which form quict retreats for thousands of busy men when thie day's activi

Hes in the vommercial venter are done. Heome life i these villages, winich are, in m.n.-:l mstances, rural only in
compaitiseay with the great cirv, s the delight of thoosands who, i treated ol only in thrir relations to commerial
aflairs, wouhl e ot praftniy l'l‘prt':i\‘lllt.'d. - ]

I wirs abse seen o history of the ity could not be made 1o melade @ record of the politival, educationald,
relipions, agricultieal, aiel i affiirs of he conaty of which Chivago is the capitl althoagzh cach of these
siphjec s contribaites 1ol ssm total al the cily™s importanee as a pohitical and social power,

B was, Lherefore, b oled to extend the scope of the plan, and prepare a votume which should embrace the
extrannir et themes, as we'lae i epitomizet history of Chicago @ thereby forming a work at once complete within
il aend supplemental b the omprehensive work pertaining solely Lo the eity,

The dunensions and « haracter of this Bistory permit of the detailed deseription of the villages and town-
ships o the county. A Lrge corps of competent and experienced writers was employed for maoy months in the
Lalwor ot pathering aned coengiling the bistories of e several toaenships, by the examinidion e vecords and inter-
views with old residents, Care has been taken o obtain all information vital to the theme of the county’s develop-

qt. s 1 redttee o perineent fonm the seattered frzments of knowledge that were fasttisappearing.

The mamufactoring interests of the codnty, while tributary to the cite's agaregrate of trade, possers aspecial
D poanee, e many cases, as centers of thrifty communities. They shouled be deseribed, therelore, in their rela-
tive hearing o the townships i which they exist, ruher than be micle ta dose their imdividual character as parts of
v andustriad statistical report,

Tie history of the grestest live stoek market in the world belongs o the town of Lake.  The magnificent
edueational ingtittions which make the name of Eyvanston known throughout-the covntry are o source of com-
mentide pride.  The institutions at Morgan Park are likewise the cause of special desire Tor treatment after this
plan. The manufacturing villages in Lyde Park are among the most noted in the State ; while Pullman suggests
 theme demanding fullest attention,

Individoal mention is also o special feature of this work, amt forms a valuable ponim of the History,
becinse by this methot only can the details of that enterprise and accomplishment which has made Cook County
whaat it is. D preserved,

The varly history of the region, and the narrative of original scitlement, as well as the chief commereiadl
amd protessional topies, composy the preliminary portions of the work, comprising a most entertaining series of dis-
tinet divisions ; but the didtingmishing eharacteristic of the Thstory is it claborate sketehes of the townships aml

Vil e aelvantapeq of this methud are obvios, aabiracing, as 1 does, the personad stalements of carly

wetthers, he deseriptions of Jocalities, and the official puditical records of the numerous divisions of the county.
The naps, views aid portraits of representative men add interest and value to the wark.
' Fhe aeknowledgements of the Publisher are hereby made to the many hundreds of persons whe have frezly
Atderl-the writers in the preparation of their manuoseript,
While i1 is Devomd reaseos Lo expeet absolute acearaey i such o work, every effort 1o seenre correciness has
een Nuele, amd, 1 s cunlidently haped, @ near realiziton of that desideratum has Leen atlainged.

AT, A
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TrEVENOT's MAP, 1673,

Thévenot's map (1673), as originally drawn, bore the title *‘ Map of the New Discovery that the Jesuit Fathers made in the year 1672, and continued by Father Jacques Marquette, of the same
Society, accompanied by several Frenchmen in the 1673,” ete. It was first published-in 1681, by Thévenot, in bis Recusi! d voyages, in connection with Marquette's Déouvertes dans T Amérigue
Scptentrionsle. The names of the 1llinois and other Indian villages west of the Mississippi generally correspond with those Jaid down on Marquette’s map, but the Kaskaskia village oo the Illinois River,
which Marquette mentions, Is not represented bere. The frequent mention of mines—iron, copper, coal, etc —with the names Lac de Michigami, Puans, Pewarea,and notably the word Blood Stones,
which also appears on Joliet's map of 1674, indicate that the above was made from his descriptions, or by himself, although errors in the map seem to refate sach a supposition. .



2 gl

' devoting his’.
Mayor' of

g".
{
-}
t- ;

HISTORY OF WHEELING. 501.

the bosrd 6f Tax Commissioners of that State, and Postmas-
ter and Collector of Customs at Savannab, Ga. Ho was ono

‘of the publishers:of the New Era, a Republican daily

paper of tlanfs, Ga., and was an earnest and efficient worker
in the reconstruciion of that State.- On resigning his collect-
orship ha>was appointed- president of the Uniled States Com-
minign'_ to iy’ té ‘the Mexican ouliages on the Texas
frontier.  He"Was Mubssquently identified with the raitroad
i of Toxas.* 'Mr. Kobb was president of the Corpus
Christi & Rio.Grande. :Railroad. 1le' was one of the pro-
jubtors and builderg of the Chicago, Texas & Mexican Central.

was ged with those interests until 1883, and is now
. *to his private business, He was the third
Sadramento, and ‘in”orgunizing the firat
eouncil of that city: - Mr. Robb was marrisd in early life to
Miss Mary 8. Morss, who lived bpt » few months after her
msrrihlgn-, ;tln" he was marri ""Miriam Goodrow.
daughter of .

47

leaving two deig __tg'n——El.li'A. and Miriam G. He was mar-
ried o third tifnerid 1857, (o Mary-C. Goodaow, who has borne
. him one son,"Thomas P., Jr... . ¢ i=ly o - :

A. J. WHITCOMB, carpenter and_bpildér, was born in
Lewis County, N.i¥., 'inm soni ‘of Moses and. Luoy Whit-
comb, He auha fo'Cook Connty in 1845 with his parents, who

located in Chiokiro seven years, théncd mo to Niles, where .
his father Wm, at the age of eighty-four, his mother

in 1873, at the age of seventy-saven. . At the ago of twenty-one
Mr. toombentﬁlged in 'boat building, and subssquently
fr the ship yard. . At the'

was employed n’ the'age of twenty-five he
commenced a & carpenter and builder, whioh he has followed
from that time, boming to Park Ridge in 1880. Re married, if

1855, Miss Ellen D, Haskins, dsughtar of Aaron.and Caro-

to :
“Li, hnd Mary Goodnow.' She died in 1856, .
Mirlazi ."sixty-five acreg of the land at $600 per B

_ }{mg on the dividing ridge between ‘theXD e
‘River and

line Haskins, Thoey bave one child, Emil Whitcomb. He
has been Trustee for Park Ridge Corporation for two terms,
and member of the school board for a number of years.  -.
. OANFIELD. - R oyt R
T'his station is Jocated on the Wisconsin Diyigion-of -~ ..~
the Obicago & North-Western Railroad; eleven:miles. - - -
from Chicago. The tract of land which it was de- ..
» gigned to build a town upon was purchased by the Illi-- " *
nois' & Wisconsin Land Company, who, in 1858, paid. .
for it #21 per acro. Three hundred acres werq laid cat. .
into" blocks, lots and streets, but on accomnt:ef“tho
crisis of 1857 the plan wus not a success,’and theland
was gold at from $40 to $50 per acre.”. Nothingfaore
was doné until 1873, when A. O. Badeau purchased

Sy

 his " interest Ridgelawn. ' On account of the sybm

the North Branch, the name was 'considered” . ;°

appropriate. At theitimpe of M-an?;gi.}mh' 9,

it was his intontion,-as well as that of rge%"’ s
Pierce, to build a number of houses, and: thus atiract: - :
residents, but nothing: was doue, and the village hag |
not yet been bnilt. ' The railroad station and one farm- -
house, originally used as the depot, are all:there isof’
it at this time, : o AR

HISTORY OF WHEELING.
(TOWNSHIP)

The town of Wheeling liee in tne north part of
Cook County, and is bounded on the north by Lake
Uounty, ou the east Ly Northtield, on the south by
Muiue aud Elk Grove, and on tho west by Palatine.
The highost land in the township is in the western
i)ortiou, there being a gradual slope to the Desplaines
liver, which flows southwurd through the eastern tier
of sectione. The soil is u rich prairic loam. Origi-
nally the timber ulong the Despluines River consisted
of a bolt ubout three-fourths of a mile in width, and
wus, perhaps, equally divided between Wheeling and
Northfield.

Probubly the first settler in the town was a Mr.
Sweet, whose first name cannot be ascertained. Ile
arrivid in Mareh, 1833, seleclx] a cliim on Seclion
13, aud built & cabin, in which he lived until the fol-
lowing October. As this was beforo the ratification
of the treaty with the Pottawatomic Tudiaus, with
roferenco to their retirement from these lunds, and as
they wero generslly opposed to their occupancy by
white mou, Mr. Sweel musl have been on especially
friendly relutions with them in order to remain there,
and yot his desire to remain scems not to have been
exeessively strong, for in October he sold his claim to
licorge Strong for %G0. Mr. Stroug. before fipally
deciding to buy this claim, consulted Colonel Thomas
J. V. Owen, Indinu Agent at Chicago, as to tho pro-
Srlety of moving onto it, sud as to tho probable results.

olonel Owen advised him not to go, as the Indianswere

hostile, and as, in addition, it would be necessary for
liim to uso tho Uniled States troops in defending the
rights of the Indians in case Mr. Strong should attempt
to occupy the land before the ratification of the treaty.
Mr., Strong, however, having sot bis heart upon this
claim, and knowing that the treaty would be ratified
in a short time, decided to make the venture, and on
Monday, September 2, took possession of his claim.
At this time his nearest neighbor to the northward
was Captain Wright, who was #aid to be the only one
between bim sud Wankegan; and to the southward
his nearest neighbor was either General Peet or Captain
Talcott—probably the former, who moved onto theclaim
whero his son, A. W. Peet, now resides, in December of the
sune year. Soon afler moving inlo the Sweet shanty, it
was swrrounded by about u dozen Indisus, whose inten-
tion wastodrive off Mr. Strong. e, however, wasnot to
Le driven off easily. Going ontside, he had quite a fight
with them, knocking onoe of them flatupon the ground.
Tlo was immalintely anrrounded by the others, who
with uplifted tomahowks and drawn knives threat-
ened him with instant death. Iis escapo is atiribut-
able ouly to his showing no signs of fear. The treaty
was soon afterward ratified, and settlers came on in
cousiderable numbers. Timothy Titcomb almost imme-
diately afterward settled just north of Mr. Stroug, on
Section 13, but soon soid out to Myron Dimmick, who
staid, however, only three or four years, William B,
Clay, and his two sons, Johu B, aud D. H. Clay, settled
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on Section 12, 8. M. Salisbury on Section 2, James
Mackoy and his brotheron Scctiou 24, Christopher and
Dauniel Stanger on Section 13, aud Christian Stryker
on Section 12. Theso, smong others, came in 1834,
tho last in Decombor. Peter Gebhardt came in Jan-
uary, 1835, remained ‘about six years, and sold out to
Heury Miller. Israel Martin also came abont this time,
.but after a ghort residonco moved to Palatine. Josc]ph
Filking, who had made his claim in 1834, built his

cabin and tnoved his family into it in 1835. Matthew-

Chivel came in February, 1835, during which year
eighteen log houges at least were raised. In March,
1836, William H. Dunton moved into the town and
has ever since been a continoous resident. In 1837
Ephraim and Charles Morrison settled on Section. 11
“or 12; Russell Wheeler and Charles Daniels opened a
store where the villn.%e of Wheeling is located, which
. thoy kept four or five yoars, and sold to Joel L.
Mcf)uﬁy. In 1838 & Mr. Shepard, or Shepherd,
started & blackemith shop, and Asher G. Skinner
arrived and settled on Section 12. Daniel Martin came
" in 1839, DBy this time there woro about two hundred
inhabitants in the town, After the ratification of the

. Indian treaty the principal cause of excitenient for the -

first fow years white men occupied this territory was
claim-jumping, and if uo one was killed for thia crime,
itwas probably because the rightful possessors were so
thoroughly united nnd organized as to be fully con-
scious of their strength and fully assured of success in
the defense of their rights, as claim-jumpers nsually
had to fight single-handed. A committee consiatitgé
of seven citizens, belonging to Wheeling, waa appoin

to decide on questions of rightiul ownership n all
cases of claim-jumping. This was the Inferior Court.
Besides this, & Saperior Court, or Court of A;g)eal,
was appointed, consisting of three citizens, S. M. Salis-
bury, George Strong, aud Joseph Filkins, before which
any case might be carried if the decision of the Infe-
rior Court eaused dissatisfaction, but the decision of the
Buporior Oourt was final. The most serious difficulty
the settlers of Wheeling were connected with was the
ejecting of a claim-jumper from a claim just north of
the present boundary of their town in Lake Couuty, i

which cuse the claimant was assisted by two female.

membors of his family feigning sicknese. A physician,
summoned for the purpose, examined tho *“sick”
women aund pronounced them in perfect health, and
on the strength of his report the women were carried
out of doors on their beds by the Wheeling vigilantes,
and the houso pulled down. This was aboat the last
of the difficulties of this kind.

In 1837 a survey of tho lands in this town was
made, and as it was known that the boundaries of the
various claims already tuken could not correspend
with the section lines that would be run, the settlers,
by muntual consent, sclected S. M. Salisbury to purchase
all tho land they had clnimed, wilh the understinding
that he should re.deed each one's individual claim to
him, as nearly as practicable, being at the same time
governed by tho section lines as run by tho survey.
Thig plan was carried out to the satisfaction of all
concerned.

From the time clections became necessary to 1850,
when the town was organized, tho territory embraced
within its limits, together with a part of Maine and
Northfield, was known as Whecling 'recinct,  The
place of voting was at Wilcox’s tavern, siluated on
the Milwankee road near where it crosses the Des-
plaines River. After the organization of tho town
elections were held at the village of Wheoling.
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This town was organized, ag woro the others in tho
county, April 2, 1850. The meeting was held “at the
house lately kept by Jawmes Parker in the town of
Wheeling.” William H. Dunton was chosen Moder-
ator, Egbert Van Vlack, Clerk, and George Fullagar,
Asgistant Olerk. The election resulted in the choice of
the following officers, each receiviuifthe vote append.
ol to his namo: “Supervisor, 8. M. Salisbary, 106 ;
Clerk, Lewia Peot, 96; Assessor, Ira Millard, 100;

- Collector, D B. Briggs, 100; Commissioners of High-

ways, Ira Snow, 100, W. I. Dunton, 171, Andrew
Luce, 99; Constables, D. B. Briggs, 122, 5. D. Y,
Miller, 98. A pound was provided for, to bo as near
the center of the town ss practicable, and Myron
Thornton was appointed - Pound-master. Three hun-
dred dollars was voted to be raised for the support of
the poor, for building » ponnd and for the incidental
cxpenses of the township, but uo tax has ever been
levied for the support of the poor in Wheeling, nor
was a pound provided at that time. Three hundred
dollars was raised for road and bridge purposes
Fonces were required to be built four feet bigh. The
total numbarrg‘z voltes cast at this election was 181, as
certified to by Lewis Peet, Town Ulerk, indicating a
Enpulation of about 760. The Commissioners of

ighwaya met April 19, and divided the ftown into
six road districts. Their sacond action was to vacate
a road running north and sonth from the Rand road
to the Dundee road, between Sections 7 and 8, and
17 and 18. This action was taken May 4, on the
petition of ten citizens, dated April 19. Fhe board of
appointment, consisting of S. M. Salisbury, Supervisor,
Lewis Peot, Clerk, W%lliam Scoville, Justice of the
Peace, and Joel F. Hawks, Justice of the Peace,
met May 4 at the house of George Strong, and
appointed Lysander Miller Overseer of ‘iighways
for District No. 1; Richard Adams for No. 2;
Ira Snow for No. 3; George Strong for No. 4;
Stephen Lamb for No. 5, and James Dunton for No.
6. Oun the 13th of March, 1851, the Commissioners
divided the town into nine districts each two miles
square. 'The first highway fond, received Ly the Com-
missioners of Highways previously to Murch-25, 1851,
was $260. At that time it was reported that in five
of the road districts there had been performed fivo
hundred and nineby-soven days’ work, and in one
other district one hundred and one. The elections
subsequent to that of 1850 have resulted in filling tho
officos as follows:

Supervisors.—Joseph Filkins, 1851; Johu Filkins,
1853 ; Joseph Filking, 1853 ; William Scoville, 1854-55 ;
Jesse Matteson, 1856-57 ; George Strong, 1848 to 1865 ;
William H. Duuton, 1866-67 ; Frederick 'Tesch, 1868
to 1870 ; David Peter, 1871 ; rederick "'esch, 1873 to
18%5; C. Giles, 1876 to 1883, inclusive.

Clerks.—John Filking, 1851 E. K. Beacli, 1852 to
1856 ; Charles Vogt, 1857 Lo 1859; T A. Ruzein,
1860 ; William H. Dunion, 1861 {o 1865; J, I, Kel-
lows, 1866 ; Ira Millard, 1867; William II. Dunfon,
1868 to 1871; Albert G. Kennicott, 1873; A. P.
Towksbury, 1874 to 1876; August Waarick, 1877; E.
M. Thoinas, 1878 to 1880; Fred R. Pfeifer, 1881 to
1883, incluegive.

Assessors.—Ira Millard, 1851 ; B. Berry, 1852 ; Will-

Yiam Scoville, 1853; K. R. Hamilton, 1854; William

k. Puntom, 1855; George Fullagar, 1856G; Channcey
Ituller, 1857; Jucolr Seewalt, 1858; K. 1. Hamilton,
1859-60 ; Ira Millard, 1861 ; C. Ilegwein, 1862 ; George
Schneider, 1863-64 ; George Strong, Jr., 1865 ; George
Schucider, 1866 to 18¢3, inctusive. -
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Collsctors—D. B. Briggs, 1851 ; Ira Snow, 1852 to
1854 ; D. F. Wood, 1855 ; Robert Hopp, 1856; L. T.
Webster, 1867 ; Henry McEnab, 1858 ; Jacob Fritch,
1859 to 1861 ; Hiram Snow, 1862 ; Samuel W, Peese,
1863 ; C. Vogt, 1864 ; George Schneider, 1865; John
Peter, 1866 ; George Strong, 1867; Charles Taege,
1868-69; Otto Nolte, 18%0; Jacob Fritsch, 1871;
David Detor, 1873-74; August Waarick, 1875.76;
Otto Nolte, 1877-78; Conrad Miller, 1879; Heury
Waeinrioch, 1880-81 ; Oharles W. Lorenzen, 1882-83.

Commissioners of Highways.—Ira Snow, George
Strong and David Fellows, the la.tter'ap{?inbed 1851
Poter Schenck, David Fellows and A, W. Peet, 1852
to 1854 ; David Fellows, George Fullagar and E. A.
Allen, 1855; David Follows, (teorge Fullagar and
John Bromley, 1866 ; David Fellows, John Bromley
and Christian Hegwein, 1857 ; David Fellowa, Chris-
tisn Hogwein aud William Kirkhoff, 1858; A. W.
Peet, Alonzo Hawks and Hiram Perry, the latter
appointed 1859; A. W. Peet, A. Hawks and M. D.
Dean, 18c0; Frederick Tesch for one year, L. Arnoid
- for two years, and Phillip Wolf for three years, 1861;
E. A. Allen, 1862 ; Alonzo Hawks, 1863 ; Henry Rus-
soll, 1864 ; Hiram Snow, 1865 ; Jacob Schmahl, 1866 ;
Jacob Hunsioger, 1867 ; Luther Whiting, 1868 ; Lud-
wig Volberding, 1868 ; Jacob Hunsinger, 1870 ; August
Waarick, 1871; Harry Eugelking, 1873; Philip
Harth, 1875 ; Henry Engelking, 1876; Philip Harth,
1877; Peter Byer, 1878; Ilenry Engelking, 1879;
Philip Harth, 1880 ; Peter Biyer, 1881 ; Henry Meyer,
1883 ; Henry Kreft, 1883,

Justices of the Peace—William Scoville and I, N.
Schafer, 1854 ; Johu Rothschild; 1857; John Roths-
child and William Scoville, 1858 ; J. W. Walton and
A. W. Pect, 1862 ; J. W. Walton and Daniel T. Wood,
1866 ; John D. Beach, 1868; John D. Beach aund
William Walluce, 1870; Jacob Fritsch and W. L.
Danton, 1873-77-81.

Constablps—Ira Snow and 1. B, Briggs, 1851
Daniel Fritsch, 1852; Iru Snow aud D. F. Wood,
1835 ; John Belden, 1856; S. 8. Dewey and E, K.
Boach, 1862 ; Charles Wetzel, appointed 1863, clected
1864 ; E. E. Beach and Hiram 8. Rich, 1865 ; Johmn
Petor, Jr.,, and E. K. Beach, 1866 ; E. K. Beach and
James C. Peter, 1870-73-74 ; Byron I). Thurber, 1876;
E. K. Bench and Luther Whiting, 1877 ; Heury Wein-
rich and George Hurst, 1881; J. I’. 1lansom, 1882.

Overseers of the Poor—QGarret Lasher, 1851; D’eter
Filbert, 1852 to 1854; D. F. Wood, 1855; Ieuben
Bromley, 185G; Hiramn Ferry, 1857; Elias Wood,
1859 ; (. N. Qlmsted, 1862.

Trustees of Scheols—A. G. Skinuer, 1869; John
Peter, 1870 ; Joel Burlingame, 1871 ; Daniel K. Draper,
18735 John Peter and Iliram Suow, 1874; Conrad
Miller, 18?5 ; Youis Fischer, 1876; Luther Whiting,
1877; Conrad Miller, 1378; louis Fischer, 1879;
1‘.!|l.hc1' Whiting. 1880; David Arneld, 1881; lauis
Fischer, 1882 ; T W. Whiting, 1883.

The Schoolx of Wheeling~—'I'here uro no rocords con-
nected with e schools of this township of an carlier
date than April 6, 1857. At that time there were ten
districts. W. 1. Dunton, A. W. Pecet and E. K.
Beach wero the school trustees, and William Scoville
was Lreasorer of the school fund.  W. 1I. Dunton be-
Came Lreasurer of this fund in 1862 und has held Lhe
oflico ever since. In 1857 the school fund was §3,800.
IAt the present time it is $3,990.03. There appears to
1Wye been no census of the school children tuken in
early days, Lut the consus of 1883 shows the following
Nuwmbers in the respective districts: District No. 1,

503

187; No. 3, 144; No. 5, 87; No. G, 67; No. 7, 84;
No. 8, 237; No. 10, 567; total number, 1,3:3. The
population of the township of Wheoling in 1880 was
2,406, In 1883 it was probably about 2,500.

ARLINGTON HIEIGIHTS.'

Arlington 'Heights is sitaated on the Wisconsin -
Division of the Uhicago & North-Western Railway,
twenty-two and two-fifthe milea from Chicago. 1t1s
located on the old farm of W. H. Dunton, and until
about 1874 was named Dunton after bim. Tho first
plat ap to have becn made November 3, 1854,
under the direction of the Commissioners of High-
ways for the town of Wheeling. Three highways ran
paraliel with each other north and south through this
subdivision, five chains apart, and the first five chaing
east of the northwest corner of the west half of the
southwest quarter of Section 29, and gach ruonin
south forty chaine. Theeo thres strects were nam
Prairie, Dunton and Vail strests, and were each four
rods wide. There was also a highway, commencing -
thirty rods south from the northwest corner of sai

uarter section, and running east twenty chaina.

nderbill’s addition was surveyed by Edmund Bixby,
County Surveyor, May 19, 1859, and was ackunowledged
May 25. Itis south of the railroad and is a part of
the northeast quarter of the southeast quarter of Sec-
tion 30, Miner’s addition, consisting of twenty acres,
wag surveyed by L. F. Clough, May 27, 1859, and was
acknowledged October 10, 1859, It is the north half of
thosoutheast quarter of the southeast guarter of Section -
30. Atking’ addition lies west of Vail Street, and north
of the railroad. Itis bounded on the north by Euclid
Avenue, and west by Elm Street. Various other addi-
tions have been mado, until at present the town plat
contains aboub two hundred and forty ucres. "The orig-
inal subdivision was, as has been said, a part of W. H.
Dunton’s farm. His house, boilt in 1845, was the
first built within tho limits of the place. He was liv.
ing there at the time of tho first survcy. The second
building erected here was 'a atore by Dr. F. T. Miner,
in 1854, the same year in which the depot was built,
and in 1855 W. G. Wing became the second merchant
in the place. The second residence was erectod by
James McGrath, Tho first blacksmith sliop was
opened curly in 1855 by u Mr. Page, and the second
luter in the same year by Jolin Fleming. The First
Presbyterian  Chureh  socicty was organized Sep-
tember 28, 1855, nnd in 185G the first hotel was
started by J. V. Downs & Co. The first hardware
store was started this e'car Ly John H. Gale, aud the
seeond by Johnson & Peter, in 1863, A tin shop was
sbarbud 1 1860 by Willioun De Temg s in 1861, o cheese
factory by Enoch Williams, wheo afterward sold it to
Heiurich Bros., who still own it and conttinne tho man-
ufucture of cheese.  In 1865 a grist mill was estab-
lished by James Shirre. In the meantime the
ercction of residcuces went on gradually. There has
been nothing phenomenal in the growth of Arlington
Heights.  In 1874, in order to give, if possible, a h
impotus Lo its developent, a number of its cilizens
conceived the jdea of changing its namo from Iij_lain
“ Duuton” to the more high-sounding one of * Arling-
ton Jleights.” The name of the post-office was
changed, as was also that of the railroad station, but
tho results were neither so immediate nor so immense
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passed through the woods and succored him. It was twenty-
seven weeks gefore he was on his feet, and during the time le
sufferedgreatly. Mr. McCune is nt present enguged in farm-
ing and dair{ing. and owns forty headl of stock, He has been
Overseer of Tighways und schoal director.

D. McNAB, farmer, P. 0. Arlington Heights, wus born in
Wheeling Township in 1852, son of Jesse nnd Hebecea MeNab,
who came to Cook County in 1847 and located on a farm in
Wheeling Township. Ilere they resided until 1880, when
they removed to Iowa. Mr. MeXNab was for some years
engaged in teaming, subscquently in farming, which pursuit
he now follows. In 1876 he wuas marvied to Miss Helen,
daughter of Laban and Eliza Skinner, They have three
children—Clara, Minnie and Gracie. Mr, McNab has been
Constable of Wheeling Township for twwo years,

WILLIAM F. ME%’ER. proprietoy of the Union Hotel,
was born jn Hanover, Germany, in 18390, son of llenry and
Elizabeth Meyer. Ile came to America with his parents in
1874, locating in Arlington Heights, In 1877 he went lo
Chicago and engaged as salesman for William Matthei. In 1881
he entered the employ of Laparle & Elich as traveling ngent.
He was with them until the spring of 1883, when he came
to Arlington Heights and purchased the furniture and fixtures
of the Union Hotel and became its proprietor. He has the
largest and best hotel in the place. The building is 40x70
feet, with & hall attached 40x30 feet, with stage 27x40 fecl.
It has an accommadation for twenty guests. Ile was married
in 1882 to Miss Mary Sievert, daughter of Fred. and Catha-
rine Sievert. He i8 a member of the Arlingten Ileights
Mannerchor and is sccretary of that society,

IRA MILLARD, farmer, was born in Kent, Litchfeld Co.,
Coun., in 1810, son of Irn snd Lydia Millard, Ilis parents
moved to Dutchess Co., N. Y., and subsequently to Washing-
ton County, where his mother died in 1823 and his father m
1828. He came to Cook County in 1330 and located in what is
now the town of Northfield, where he remained six yenrs,
engaged in farming. In 1842 he sold lis furm awd located on
a {arm in Wheeling, Section 28, Township 42, Range 11, which
hestill owns. containing 214 acres, 1le alsuownsa tine residence
in Arlington Heights, on Miner Strect, to which he moved in
1877, and now rents his farm.  1le was maurried in 1841 to Miss
Eloisa Peet. They have had four children; three are now living
—DBell P. Kimball, Lewis P.and Carrie T..  Mrz. Millard died in
1854, He was inarried in 1855 to Mizs Electa Smalley. They
have had five children, two are now living—Willis K, and Ros-
coe N, Mrs. Millard dying in 1869, he was married in 1871 to
Mrs. Caroline Paddock, daughter of Smith and Anna Weed.
He is a liberalist in his religious views. 1l has held varieus
town offices.

RUSH B. MINER, retired farmer, was born in Washingtan
Connty, Vt., in1822, son of Dr. Frederick T. and Miranda
Miner. e came to Cook County witll his parents in 1833,
they locating at Elk Grove. [Ilis futher hnilt tha fivst house in
that town, Ilis farm was in Section 16. Township 41, Hange
11. He resided there for thirty years, when he removed to
Arlington Heights, where he resided until his death, which
occurred in 1861, at the age of sixty-eight years. Ile was a
physician, but on coming to Illinois he intended to give up
the practice, but was compelled to reswme it, as there was no
physician aside from himself in that part of the country. The
subject of this sketch on at,minin;]; his mnjority, {or two years
cartied the mnil from Chicago to Janesville, Wis,, making the
trip once a week, after which he engaged in farming,  MHis
farm was in Elk Grove Township, Sections 7 and 8, Townshi
41, Range 11, and contained 163 acres. Ie vesided on his
farm until 1881, when he removed to Arlington Heights, nnd
now rents his farm. Mr. Miner was married in 1830 to Miss
Lorzine S, Gay, daughterof Mace and Sarah Gay. They have
had four children, two of whom are now living—Francelia 3.
Griffin and Addie M. Hess. He is a member of the Congrega-
tional Church. e has been Constable for four years, and has
served as Justice of the Peace for the same lenygth of time.

CONRAD NIEDERT, merchant, was bLorn in Hessen,
Schanmburg, Germany, in 1828, son of Conrad and Mary., He
came to America in 1846 and located in Cook County, Hewas
employed on the railroad and canal for the first few years.
Mr, Niedert married in 1850 Miss Doratha Menshine, daughter
of Christian and Charlette Menshine. They have had ten chil-
dren, nine are now living—Mary, Dora. Conrad, Sophia, Joln,
Anna, Willie, Bertha and Ienry. Fle was engaged in farming
in Wheeling for about seven years, when he sold his farm and
built a store in Qak Grove, where hie carried on the general
merchandise busipess, two miles south of the old store. Ile
owns two acresand another store 28x306 feet; also owns a black-
smith shop. He has been Cellector and Constable of Etk Grove
for seven years.

F. W. PAGE, farmer, was born in Grafton County, N. H.,
in 1813, son of John and Tannah Page. TTe came to Conk
County in 1834 and localed in EIk Grove Township, on See-
tion 9, Township 41, Range 11, containing 1,000 agres.  In the
full of 1883 he moved to Arfinglon Heights, where he owns u
fine residence. Ho was married in 1530 to Miss Selinda Noyes.
They hnve had eight chilidren, =even are now living—John K,
Sarah E.. Ellen, Hannah L., Hiram A., Frederick W.. Martha
A. and George R, lleisa member of the Methodist Episcopat
Church, atrustecand steward. 1lehas been Commmissioner, Jus-
tice of the Peace, and for cight years Postmaster of Elk Grove.
His father, John Page, was eleeted United States Senntor from
New Hampshire to fill the vacaney occasioned by the resigna-
tion of Isaac ITill in 1836, Ie was clected Governor of New
Hampshire in March, 1838, and re-eleeted in 1830,

C. A, PERRY. farmer wasborn in Franklin County, N. Y.,
in 1838%, son of ILirnm and Margaret Perey.  He eame to Cook
County with his parents in 1845, Incated on Secction 24, Town-
ship 42, Range 11, where his father resided until his death,
which occurred in 1881, at the age of seventy-eight. Mr.
Perry, the suliject of this sketch, is unmarried, and owns the
homestead, which contained 280 ncres, two miles east of Arling-
ton Heights. lIle is a member of the school board and has
been Road Commissioner for nine years. Mrs. Perry, mother
of C. A, Perry, is now living with her son on the old home-
stead. She iz eighty years of age.

DAVID PETER, machinist, was born in Dundee, Scotland,
in 1835, son of John and Murgaret Peter. Ilo eameo Lo
America in 1842 with his parents. They resided o few months
in iarlem, N. Y., then moved to Chiengo. In 1834 his father
Fnrchuseda hotel property on the Little Calinnet River, in

ndinna, which he kept for Lwo years,  Ile then moved to the
town of Bioem, Cook County, on a form, where he resided
until 1852, then moving to Blk Girove, whero he lived until 1862,
He then moved to Arlington Heights, remaining there until
iais death, which occnrred in 187G, at the age of sixty-cight.
Mrs, Peter died in 1861, at the nge of fifty-three. On altain-
ing his majority, the subject of this sketeh learned the black-
smith trade, which he'followed for two years. Ile then went
to California and spent two years iu mining. Un his return
hie wasg for five years engaged in farming, o then built an
clevator, and for six yen1s was engaged in the grain and lum-
ber bnsiness; selling out. he built another elevator, and for four
vears was engaged in the grain, flour and coul trade, since
which time he has been cecupicd in farming and fruit raising
on his farm of twenty acres,  He owns a fine residence in the
village, For the last four years he has devoted what time he
eoulll spare, in connection with his other business, to machine
Iabor in the Sigwall sewing machine factory.  1le wasimarried
in 1862 tn Bise S, tHiggins, danghter of Ase! and Lvdia Hig-
gins, They have five chililren—Flsie, Murgaret, David,
George and Gertie.  He has been Collector of Wheeling two
UATE,

ELIZA PETER wax born in Franklin County, N. Y.,
duanghter of Samue] nnd Mary Rich,  She came Lo tlook Connty
in 1852 and located in Wheeling Township. She was married
in 1852 to John Lytle. They had one child, Emma Lytle.
They located ona farm in Wheeling Township, and after five
years they removed to Arlington Heights, and built n residence
on Myrule Avenue, where she resided nntil her busband’s dently,
in 1839, at the are of thirty-lwo yesrs.  In 1863 she wis married
toJohn Peter. Tledied in 1374, Bhe owns her residenee and two
lotg on Myrtle Avenua,  Ilerduughtcr Kmma Lytie was mar-
ried {11 1880 to Edward Ranson, foremun of the stationery house
of Claude D. Meyer, 168 Randolph Street, Chicage. Mors,
Peter is a ncnber nf the Presbylerian Church,

FRED. R. PFETFIIR, dealer in grain, flour, coal al [eed,
was born in Luke County, IIL., ir 1850. son of Jacoband Mag-
dalena Pleifer. His purents were natives of France, s
father came to America in 834, After a vesidence of eleven
vears in Buffulo, N. Y., he removed 10 Vornan, Tiake County,
M., where he wis marvicd to Miss Maglalena Sigwaldt. e
remained in Lake County unfil 1330, when he eame to Arling-
ton Ileights to reside with hi= son, F. L. Pleifer, The subject
wf this sketeh, on attaining his majority, engagel in farming
arzd mereantile business for seven years,  In 1878 ho wag maur-
riedd to Miss Adele Lo Stempell ilanghter of Charles Stempel,
of Long Grove, Lunke County, After their marringe they
located in Clicago, where e wus enugnged in the mercantile
business for oue year, alter which they removed to Arlington
1leights, where he engaged in his present husiness.  1le owns
an elevator with a capacity of 15,000 bushels, erected in 1873,
and a wirehonuse atluched for flour and feed, and a coal house
for 440 tonsofl conl. Tlis business has increased ffty per cent
since its establishment.  He is also a dealer in commercial
exchange, Mr. Pfeifer was elected Town Clerk in 1580, and
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has been re-alected each succeeding year. Ile is & member of
the A. F. & A, M. fraternity.

W. A, RUSSELL, farmer, P. O. Arlington Heights, was
born in Wakefield, Stafford Co., N. 1., in 1820, son of Rich-
ard and Sarah Russell. Ile was bronght up on & farm. In
1845 he commenced raitroading on the %u:stou & Muine Rail-
road, in 1851 entering the employ of the Troy & Boston
Railroad. In 1853 he came to Chicago, and was empioyed on
the Wisconsin Division of the Chicugo & North-Western
Railroad, his run bcinﬁ fromn Chicago to Woodstock, he being
the first passenyer conductur on the line. He was married in
1835 to Miss Anna Barnes, daughter of Joseph and Fliza
Barnes. They have had four children, three are now living—
Willie B., Frank W. and Mary A. He settled on his farm in
September, 1855, on Section 13, 'Lownship 41, Range 11, con-
taining 150 acres, where he has since resided, He isa member
of the D’resbyteriun Chureh. Mrs. Russell died in 1873, and
lie was married i 1877 to Mrs. Olive J. Fernald, daughter of
James and Sarsh Lord. She has one child, Anna Fernald.

G. A. SCIIMIDT, proprictor of the Schmidt Meat Market,
was born in Bavarin, Germnany, in 1844, son of Adolph and
Elizabeth Schinidt. He cume to America in 1853 with his

arents. After a residence in Chicago they retnoved to Wheel-
ing Township, located on a farm where they resided for about
filteen years, then moved to the village of Wheeling, where
his father now resides. His mother died in 1882, at the age of
sixty-three years. The subject of this sketch was married in
1866 to Miss Mary Snanchez, daughter of Francis and Louisa
Sunchez. They had six chililren; four are now living—Eddie,
Adolph, Frank and Mary. lle ¢ame to Dunton, now Arling-
ton Heights, in 1868. and established his present business on
Myrtle Avenue, where he hus since been with the exception of
ahout fifteen months that he spent in Iowa. He owns the
market building and a residence connected. Ile has a very
large trade, extending in the town of Palatine and Darrington,
where he runs a tean daily during the summer, aml three
times a week during the wiuter. 1lis inarket was the first
‘establishment in Arlington Heights that is now running. He
keeps the best quulity of incats in his mnrket, and when he
ennnot get them at home be Luys them in Chicago, Ile is a
member of the Presbyterian Church, and of the Musonic fra-
ternity, A, F. & A, M.

JOHN D, SCHOONMAKER, superintendent of the Dia-
mond Sewing Machine Contpany, wus bora in Ohio, in 1844, son
of Egbert and Caraline. On attuining his majority he learned
the trade of a machinist, which he has followed from that
time. with the exception of three yenrs Lthat he was eugnged as
salesman for the Singer Sewing Machine Company, at the
branch office of the comnpany at Deluware, Obio, 1n 1876 he
came to Cook County and lveated in Chicago. He wus
ndjuster for the sewing machine for two yenrs. He then
moved to Arlington lleights and was employed by the Sigwalt
Sewing Machine Company. lle hud a contract for pulting up
20,000 machives. 1n 1831 he was employed by the Wilson
sewing Machine Company us superintendant of their works at
Grand Crossing. He remained with them until they sold out’
in 18383, In September, 1883, he accepted 1he position of
superintendent of the Dismond Sewing Machinre Company.
He enlisted in 1863 in Comﬁn.ny C, 2d New York Mounted
Rifles, He participated in the battles of Spottsylvania, Cold
llarbor und siege of Petersburg, where he was wounded by &
gunshot through the right leg. Ile wus in the hospital nine
months, e was then discharged for disability in 1805. He
was married in 1870 to Miss Annae Miller, daughter of John
and Lueinda Miller, They huve one child, Frank., Heisa
member of the 1, 0. 0. T,

CIIARLES SIGWALT, foreman of the Diamond, was born
in Alsace, Germany, in 1841, sun of Juhn aud Barbura Sig-
walt, He came to Ameriea in 1852 and lucated in Long
Grove, Lake Couul,’v, where he resided [or six years, when he
came to Wheeling Township and engaged in the hotel und
butcher bLusiness. In 1862 he enlisted in Company I, 88th
Ilinois Infantry. He was attuched to the Army of the Cum-
Lerland, and participated in the battles of Ierryville, Stone
River, Chickamaugs, Missionary Hidge, lesaca, Adairsville,
Lost Mountain, Culp's Farr, Kenesaw Mountain, Dallas, Peach
Tree Creek, the siege of Atlanta Jonesbore, Spring Hill, Frank-
lin, Nashville and other engagements of his command. lle
enlisted as a private and wus promoted to Corporal, Orderly Ser-
geant,and Second Licutennnt. 1le was never absent from his
company during his three yoars’ service, and wasmustered out ut
the close of the war in 183,  After the war he engaged in the
hide and commission business in Chicago for about four years.
He then entered the employ of the Howe Sewing Machine
Cornpuny for two yeurs, and was then employed by John Sig-
walt a® a machinist for five vears. Ho then came with his
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Lrother to Arlington Heights, whera the latter established the
factory of the Sigwalt Sewing Machine, under the irm name
of John Sigwalt, Jr.. & Co. After two years he formed a joint
stock company, under the name of Sigwalt Sewing Machine .
Company, with a capital stock of $75,000, und the company
carried on the business from 1878 to 1883, during which time
they manufactured 40,000 machines. In August, 1883, the
corporate name was changed to the Diamond Sewing Machine
Compiny. He was married in 1874 to Miss Elizabeth Bleimehl,
daughter of Peter Bleimehl. They have two children—Lillian
and John, He is a member of the Masonic fraternity, A. F.
& A. M., and is Muster of the Palatine Lodge, No. 814.

LUCIUS SKINNEIR, furmer, was born in Waitsfield, Vt., in
1813, son of Daniel and Minerva Skinner. He came to Cook
County in October, 1839, and located in KElk Grove, where he
has since resided. Ile owns a farm in Section 16, Township
41, Range 71, containing twenty-four acres. Ils was married
in 1849, to Miss Juliet Miner. '’hey have had six children ;
one is now living, Ilattie M, Luth, Mrs. Skinner died in 1866,
He is a mnember of the Presbyterian Church, and is also elder.
1le hae beerr Town Collector for eight years, and Town Clerk
for three yenrs, Constable for three years, Township Treasurer
for eighteen yesrs, and Justice of the Peace for eight years.

MRs, M. {) SCTHERLAND wuas born in Belchertown,
Hampshire Co., Mass., in 1817, daughter of Aaron and Rebeces
Davis. She was married May 4, 1334, to Reuben M. Mellen.
They came to Chi in1845. They had threechildren; oneis
now living—W, 3. Mellen, general freight agent of the Chi-
eago & North-Western RRailroad. She was married in 1857 to
Willinmno H. Austin; they had one child, deceased. Mr. Mel-
len died in 1804, and in the fall of the same year she was
married to Walter Sutherland. After their marriage they
lived on their farm for one year and a half, then moved to
Arlington Heights, where they now reside. Mrs, Sutherland
owns u fine residence on Vail Street, and Mr. Sutherland owns
five acres in the village, which he cultivates, He was born in
Dorset, Bennington Co., Vt., in 1807, son of James and Mary
Sutherland. He cameto Cuok County in 1845 and located in
Wheeling on a farm, where he resided for twenty-one years.
e was married in 1830 to Miss Almira Swan, who bore him
three children, two now living—Miranda Cross and Mary A.
Dana. Mrs. Sutherland died in 1841. and he was married in
1842 to Miss Ruth Berry, who died in 1863, leaving thres chil-
dren—Walter, Jr., Adelia L. and Byron, He was married to
his present consort in 1504,

CHARLES TAEGE, hardware merchant, was born in Prus-
sia in 1828, son of John wnd Mary Taege. He came to Cook
County in 1854 and located in Chicago, where hs remained une
vear employed in a lumber yard. e then went, in 1856, to
East Whee{ing and started a tin shop, which he carried on one
year, and then moved to IJ.oomis Corners, where he was three
years enguged in farming. e then moved to Long.Grove,
Lake County, where he remained four years. In 18638 he
came to Dunton, now Arlington Ileights, and established his
Tresent hardware business on the ground now occupied by the
Reck Block. His buginess is now loented on the corner of
Myrtle Avenue and Willow Street, in his own brick store,
22x50 feet "in size, erected in 1874. He carries a full line of
hardware, stoves, tinware and farm implements. His business
has increased from about $3,500 the first year to $20,000 the
last year, Ile was married in 1854 to Miss Lena Cramer.
They have had five children; four are now living—Willie,
Getta, Emel and Charles. Mr. Taege is & member of the
Lutheran Church. He has also been for six years trustee of
the Chureh. He was Deputy Sheriff of Cook County for two
vears, 1881-82, and Collector of Wheeling for two years,

ELIAS M. THOMAS, insurance agent, iz a native of
McHenry County, ill, born in 1847. MHis parents, Elias A,
and Hester Ann (Snow) Thomas, were both natives of Ver-
mont, and came to McHenry Counr.y in 1843 und settled on a
farm, whence they moved to Desplaines in 1868, The father
wns born in 1811, und died at Desplaines, Cook County,
o 1882, The mother, born in 1819, died at the same place in
1879, They were married in 1240, and had six children, four
iirls and two boys, of whom bt two are now living—Mrs, C.
3. Bennett, now residing at Desplaines, and the subject of
this sketch. Mr. Thomas served during the late war in Com-

any G, 32d INinois Volunteer lufantry. In 1868 he married

uth R. Llenion, of Ann Arbor, dlich., born in 1849, They
have three children—Clarn 1., Elin M. and Ruth 8., xged
thirteen, nine and one year respectively, Mr. Thomas cume
to Cook County in 1871, and established the first drug store in
Arlington Heights. He has served as Town Clerk and has
ever manifested an interest in its municipal affairs.

ARTHUR VON WERDER, M. D., physician and surgeon,
was born in Berlin, Germany, in 1847, son of Francis and
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Louisa Von Werder. He was educated in 1886, and gradu-
ated in 1860 in the University at Berlin, and spent ten years
as a physician in the Prussian A rmy. In 1879 be came to
America and located in Chieago, where he practiced for two
vears. In 1882 he moved to Arlington leights, but still
attends his practice in Chicago, and at his vesidence in Arling-
ton Heights. He was marricd in March, 1580, to Miss Lena
Brannling, daughter of P. Braunling, of Chicago, They have
one child, Arthur, Ileis a mmember of the Lutheran Church,

JOHN W, WALTON, farmer, was born in Moriah, Essex
Co., N, Y_, in 1815, son of Thomas and Julia Walton, [le
came to Cook County in May, 1833, his parents in Februury,
1834. They located in what is now the township of Maine,
where his father lived until his death, which oceurred in 1843,
at the age of sixty-three. The subject of this sketch on
attaining his majority engaged in fasming on Section 8 Town-
ship 41, Range 12, where he resided until 1857, when he
moved to Arlington Heights. He sold his farm in 1862 and
parchased one in Wheeling Township, Seetion 30, Township
42, Range 11, containing seventy-two acres. He alsoownsa
residence on the corner of James Strectand Park Avenue, Ile
was married in 1842 to Miss Catherine Johnson, daughter of
Samuel Johnson. They have had four children, one now
living, Frances A. Field. Ie was Assessor of the town of
Maine in 1852, and Road Commissioner for a number of years;
also member of the school board. He was elected Justice of
the Peace in 1860, and held that effice for eight years.

SAMUEL WAYMAN, farmer, P. O. Arlington Heights,
was born in Ely, Cambridgshire, England, in 1815, son of
Joseph and Elizabeth Wayman, Coming to this country in
1833, he landed in Quebee, from whence he came to Niagara
Falls on a tow-bonrt drawn by oxen, and from theve to Lock-
port on cars drawn by horses. There he followed butchering
for two years, then went back home, and after staying some
four years returned to America, came to Albany, and engaged
in gardening for three years. He eame to Cook County in
1843 and bought forty acres of land in Lake County, part of
which he broke and sowed with winter wheat, He sold this
farm in the spring for $17.50, He now owns 350 acres of land
in Wheeling Township and 193 acres in Towa, He was mar-
ried in 184G to Miss Bmma Kinder, of Wheeling, who came
from England with her folks in 1842, located in the town of
Wheeling on o farm, and engaged in farming. After marriage
he pre-empted forty acres, built his first house with 500 feet
of lumber. anl two years lafer built an addition of 500 feet
more, and lived in this shanty fourteen years. He plowed the
first ground fora gavden with a spude, and dug wells forseventy-
five cents per day, and had to tale his pay in anything they had
togive. They haveeight children—Joseph .. William. Bessie,
John 8., Samuel G., James E., Levi B. and Frank H. The
family were members of the Church of England, but are now
attendants of the Presbyterian Church. Mrs. Wayman's
parents were among the early setilers of Wheelin%, and were
engaged in the manufacture of cloth at Lockweod, England.
Her father died in 1862, at the age of seventy-three; her
mother in 1866, at the age of seventy-seven,

E. B. WHEELER, farmer, was born in Grafton County,
N. H., in 1814, son of George W, and Fannie Wheeler, He came
to Cook County in 1837 and loeated in Eik Grove. on Section
10, Township 41, Range 11. where he resided until 1882, when
He sold his farm and meved to Arlington Heights. Heownsa
fine residence and forty acres in the village. THis residence is
on Enclid Avenue. He was married in 1840 to Miss Emily
Clough, daughter of Jeonathun and Nancy Clough. natives of
New EE-la.r:npshire. They bave had eleven children; five are now
living—Elbert B., John T., George W., Irving E. and Osmon
C. Alba H, was killed in the late war, enlisting in Company
F, 8th Illinois Volunteer Infantry; he fetl at Brandy Station,
Va. Mr. and Mrs. Wheeler are members of the Methodist
Episcopal Church, he being steward of the Church. He isa
stanch temperance man and one of the organizers of the first
Good Templars Lodge in Wheeling,

JOHN B. WHITING, farmer, was hornin Windsor County,
Vt., in 1824, son of John and Betsey Whiting, He came to
Cook County with his parents in 1834, who located on Section
21, Township 41, Range 11, where his father resided untit his
death, which occurred in 1883, at the apge of seventy-five
years. Mr. Whiting, thesubjeet nf this sketch, lived on the
old homestead until 1877, when he sold the farm and moved
to Arlington Ileights. He owns a fine residence and two
lots on Myrtle Avenue, and a farm of 160 acres in Madison
County, Iowa. He was married in 1830 to Miss Lucinda
Skinner, daughter of Joel and Abigail Skinner. They had five
children-—Charles E., Stella M., Maria C., Elmer E. and Laurta
E. Mrs, Whiting died in 1879. He was married m 1881 to
Mrs. A. E. Perry, daughter of Lyscum and Hannah Van Gar-
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der. He has been director for the school board for about
fourteen years in Elk Grove Township, and also & member of
the school board in Arlington Ileights.

L. W, WHITIN{, furmer, was born in Windsor County, Vt.,
in 1821, son of John and Betsey Whiling, e cameto Cook
Connty, tl, with his parents in 1834, and located at Elk
Grove on a farm, where his fnther vesided until his death,
which eeeurred in March, 1863, at theage of seventy-six. On
attaining his mnjorily the subject of this sketch engaged in
farming in Elk (Grove Township, Section 21, Township 41,
Range 11, where he lived for fiftecn years, when he sold his
farm and purchased one in the town of Wheeling, in Section
31, Township 42, Range 11, containing 177 acres, which he still
owns. Ile now resides in Arlington Heights and reats his
farm. He was married in 184) to Miss Luruett Young,
deughter of Hiram and Abignil Young. They have had six

children; four are now living—1I'rank A , Wilfred B., John V., . :

and Abbie Y, Ile is & membur of the Presbyterian Church
anc one of its trustees. 1le was Assessor of Elk Grove Town-
ship, Road Commissiancr of Wheeling about eight years and
mewnber of the school board for fifteen years.

WILLIAM C. WILLIAMS, publisher of the Cook County
Herald, an eight-column folio weekly paper, established in
1872, circulated in the northwestern towns of Cook County;
also the Jefferson Herald, published every Saturday, and eir-
culated in Jefferson Township. The Jefferson Herald was
established in 1882,

ALEX WILSON, farmer, P. 0. Arlington IHeights, was
born in Schenectady, N. Y., in 1826, son of Andrew and
Jane Wilson. Ile came to Cook County in 1840 and located
in Deer Giove Palatine Township, where he remained for
about ten years, when he removed to Rock River, Here he
remained for two years, then moved to Wheeling Township
and located on the farm where he now resides, containing 100
acres. He was married in 1856 to Miss Sarah E., daughter of
Henry and Eva Fulkerson, They have three children—Eva J.,
Charles W. and Elln A. Mrs. Wilson is a nember of the
Baptist Church. Mr. Wilson has served on the school board
for four years.

VILLAGE O WHEELING.

This village is located on the Milwnukee road, six
miles north of Desplaines and four miles west of
Shermer Station. In 1837 Wheeler & Danicls started
a store here, and about the same time Joseph Filkins
opened a hotel.  Mr. Filkins also built the first honse
in the place. The lumber was brought from Kenni-
cott’s mill, about a mile south of Halt Day. A seeond
Liotel was opened about the year 1840, by Jurnes Parker.
'I'he post-office was established in 1836, with Joseph
Filkius for Postmaster.  Mr. Filkins was succeeded by
Charles Ddaniels, and he by J. L. McDaffy. John M,
Schaeffer was the next Postmaster, and then Charles
Vogt, Fred. Stryker and Charles Huusinger, each in
tury, the latter being the present official, appointed
eatly in 1883. The first blacksmith liere was a Mr.
Shepard or Shepherd, as stated elsewhere, in 1838 ; the -
second was Asher G. Skinner, in the same year, and
the third was E. K. Bench, recently deceased, in 1842
or 1843. A church, the only onein the village, was
erected in 1868, by the Lutherans, at a cost of abont
%1600, It is a one-story frame, with a short steeple,
This village attained its present size quite a number of
years ago, and not being near a railroad is not likely to
grow very materially in the near future. The chief
events of importance in the recent history of the
place have been the prosecution of various parties for
the illegal selling of intoxicating drinks by George
Strong, one of the oldest settlers of the town of Wheel-
ing, and a strong foe of intemperance. "The village
now contains two general stores, three hotels, two
blacksmith shops, one wagon shop, two shoe shops, one
brewery, one physician, a Lutheran Church, and about
200 inhabitants.
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WHEELING BIGGRAPHICAL SKETCHES.

LOUIS FISCHER, wheelwright, was born in Wheeling in
1839, son of Louis and Johanonsh Fischer, who came to Cook
County in June, 1838, and located in Wheeling Townshipon a
farm, His father died in Uctober, 1875, at the age of sixty-
seven years. Hismother is living, at the ageof seventy. Mr,
Pischer in carly life learned the trade of wheelwright. In
161 he enlisted in Company [, 15th Hlinois Volunteer
Infantry, and took part at Pitisburg Landing, Corinth, siege
of Vieksburg, Jackson, and other engagements. He was
wounded at the battle of Pittsburg Landing, and disabled
from service about two months. I June, 1864, he was mus-
tered out anc returned to Wheeling, and bought the wheel-
wright shop of S. W. Rees, of whom he learned his trade. This
busmess he has since followed. He was married in 1885 to
Miss Sophia Periolet; they have had seven children, six now
living—Julia, George, Reinhold, 1dwin, Oscar and Irving.
They are Mothodist {n religious faith., Mr. Fischer is a mem-
ber of the Masonic fraternity, A, F. & A, M., Virtravius
Lodge, No. 81, of which he has been secretary for thirteen
consccutive years., He has been trustee for the school fund
for nine years, and sehool director for four years. .

JACOD FRITSCU, farmer, I>. O. Wheeling, was born in
Germany in 18306, son of Daniel and Susan Fritsch. He came
to Cook County with his parents in 13841, who located on the
farm where hﬁ- Fritsch now resides; his father is living, at
eighty-one years of age; his mother died in 1881 at the age of
seventy-seven, [le owns 134 acres of land, and is engaged in
farming und dairying. In 1850 he was married to Miss Mag-
delena, daughter of Christian and Ursula Schaffer; they have
three children—Daniel E., Robert (i, and Anns A. They are
attendunts of the Presbyteriun Church at Wheeling. Mr.
Fritsch was Constable of Eeﬂhee!ing for six years, school direc-
tor for twenty years, and 18 now Justice of the Peace and notary

ublic, He has held these offices for twelve years, and is a
director of the Northfield Mutual Insurance Company and a
member of the Wilber Mercantile Collection Ageney, of
Chicago, and was Tax Colleztor of Wheeling for five years.

CONRAD MILLER, farmer, P. 0. Wheeling, was born
in Germany in 1828, son of Jacob und Catharine Miller. He
came to Cook County in 1337 with his purents, who loeated in
Whecling Township nnd engaged in furining until their deaths,
his futher in 1837, at the age of sixty-four, and his mother in
1873, at the same age. Mr, Miller learned the trade of ashoe-
maker in early life snd followed that business for about thirty-
six years, He worked in Chicago until 1860, when he moved
to Wheeling Township and located’on the farm where he now
resides, containing eighty-four acres, one and a half miles
from Wheeling, where he has since been engaged in farming
in connection with his trade. lle was married in 1849 to Miss
Lydia Ilolmes, daughterof John and Helen Ilolines, natives
of England, and early settlers in Chicago. Mr. and Mrs.
Miller nave eight children—>Minnie M., Isaac A., Charles S.,
Thomus G., Frank B., Medora A., Lillie E. and WillieC. He
isa memberof the Masonic fraternity, A. F. & A. M., Virtru-
vins Liodge, No. 81, and has been Collector and trustee of
the school Tund for Wheeling for six years, and school director
for ten years,

M. MUFI’AT, physician and surgeon, was born in Munich,
Bavaria, in 1850, son of Carl and Teresa Muffat. He was
educated at the Maximilian Ludwig University, of Munich,
completing his course in 186D. Ile was one year in the sani-
tary corps of the German Army. In thefall of 1869 he came
to Amnerica, and after & short residenes in Chicago located at
Menominee, Wis., and engaged in practice, In 1871 he re-
moved to l’eshtigo, Wis,, and was there during the great fire
of that year that destroyed the entire village; then went to
Chicago and engaged in the drug%business. In 1872 he was
appointed manager of the drug department of the German
Aid Society, and was in charge of the German and American
Dispansary; then established the drug business of M. Muffat
& Co. In 1875 he tock & course at the Rush Medieal College,
in the spring of 1878 locating in Wheeling, his practice ex-
tending to some of the neighboring towns. Mr. Muffat was
warvied in 1878 to Miss Minnie Sigwalt, They have two
ghildren—Carric and Maximilian. He is a member of the
Catholic Church,

A. W. PEET, farmer, P. 0. Wheeling, was born in Cuoya-
hogs County, Ohie, in 1812, His parents, Lewis and Isabel,
came to Cook County in 18388 and passed the winterat an Indian
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trading post at Riverside, then known as Langhton's Place.
The next spriog they settled on Mr, Peet’s present farm, which
contains 197 zcres. His father died in 18562, aged sixty-one
years; his mother, in 1849, aged fifty-one, Mr. Peet married, in
1849, Miss Abby J. Hewitt, daughter of Robert and Betsey
[fewitt., They have had ten children, seven now living—
Franklin, Edwina C., Robert E., William E., Louise, Edward
L. aud Emma M. lle iz a* member of Virtruvius Lodge, No.
81, A. F. & A, M, lle hus been twenly years a member of
the school board, and served four years as Justice of the
Peace.
GENERAL LEWIS PEET was born in Connecticutin 1791,
When quite a small boy he moved to Vermont. He servedasa
private soldier in the War of 1812, and participated in the battle
of Plattsburg. In 1816 he moved to Ohio, settling in Cuya-
hoga County, where he worked at the blacksmith trade in con-
nection with farming. 1lle was here madeca Justice of the
Peace and Deputy Sheriff of the county, He moved to lllinoisin
October, 1833, and took up his claim in Wheeling Township in
December of the same year. He held a commission as General
in the Ohio Militia. He was the first Justice of the Peace of the
recinet which included what is now Wheeling Township, and
ge was the Town Clerk of Wheeling after the organization of
the town. His death occurred August 20, 1832. .

J. G. SCHNEIDER, veterinary surgeon, was born in the

rovince of Rhine, Prussia, in 1827, son of John N. and Eva

hneider. He was educated for s veterinary surgeon,
and served five and a balf years in the Drussian Army.
In 18353 he came to America and located in Wheeling,
Cook County, where he hassince resided, engaged in the prac-
tice of his prefession. He isalso an insurance agent; he has
the ageney of the Milwaukee Mechanies” Mutual, the Addi-
son Farmers’ Mutusl, of Du Page County, and the Rockford
Insurance companies. He was married, in 1858, to Miss Maria
Bier; they have nine children—George, Edward, Reinhold,
Carl, Mary, Annie, Amelis, Emma and Alma. He iz a
member of the Wheeling Presbyterian Church. He has been
Assessor of Wheeling for twenty years and school director for
fifteen years.

A. G. SKINNER, farmer, P. 0. Wheeling, was born in Mid-
dlesex County, N. J., in 1816, son of John and Elizabeth Skin-
ner. e came to Cook County in 1836, and located in eastern
Wheeling Township, where he engaged in blacksmithing for
four vears, then moved on the farm where he now resides,
conteining 270 acres, and has since followed farming and
blacksmithing. He was married in 1838 to Miss Eliza Jane
Hufl, daughter of Johnson and Jennett Huff. They have had
seven children, four now living—Ewma F., Jennett H., Eliza-
beth J. and Clara E. R. They are members of the Methodist
Episeopal Church. Mr. Skinner is 8 member of the Masonic .
fraternity, A. F. & A. M.

GEQRGE STRONG, Jr., farmer, P. O. Wheeling, was
born in Wheeling in 1840, son of George and Catharine
Strong, and was brought up on the farm where he now resides,
being the old homestead where his father settled in 1834, He
was married, in 1861, to Miss Fenny E. Beach, daughter of
Samnuel A. and Eliza Beach; they have had five children, four
of whom are living—John W, Callie A., George A. and Fanny
M. Mr. Strong and his wife are members of the Methodist
llapiscopal Church, and he is a steward nnd trustes of the same.

r. Strong is & member of Virtruvius Liodge, No. 81, A. F.
& A M, e has been Assessor and Collector of the town of
Wheeling, and 2 member of the school board for eighteen

years.

CHARLES VOGT, merchant, was born near Hesse-Cassel,
Germany, in 1835, son of William and Catharine Vogt. He
cams to Cook County in 1843, and helped his father on a farm
in Wheeling Township, for ten vears. Ile then engaged as
salesman for J. Al chaﬁcr for four years; then, in company
with his father, bought the business, in four years purchasin
his father’s interest, and {rom that time unti{ 1881 he ca.rrie§
on the busiuess alone. In that year he formed a partnership
with Emel Sigwalt, and the business i3 now conducted under
the firm name of Vogt & Sigwalt. They carry a full stock of
§eneml merchandise. Mr. Vogt was married, in 1857, to Miss

osephine, daughter of Napolean and Salome Periolate; they
have had three children, all decensed. He is & member of the
Presbyterian Church; is also a member of the Masonic fra- .
ternity, A. F. & A. M., Virtruvius Lodge, No. 81, and has
been Town Clerk and school director. He has been Postmaster
and Deputy of Wheeling for twenty-four consecutive years,
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Mrs. Lydia H, Sigourney, of Hartford, Conn., com-
posed the following poem upon his death:

Science doth mourn for thee,

Who thus at cpening day,

Didst shroud thy manly head, and pass
From her fair halls away.

But poverty and pain

Lament with deeper woe

‘Their benefactor laid in dust,
Where turf and wild flowers grow;

Lament his faithful care

Their gushing tears that dried,

And sought them'in these dark abodes
That few explored beside.

Yet better thus beloved,

Ere faded prime, to fall,

Affections pearl-drops on thy brow,
And o'er thy sable pall,

The medical colleges and hygienic institutions of
Chicago bear mute, though substantial, testimony to
the medical prowess of her doctors, as her many hos-
pitals, infirmaries and charitable institutions do to their
benevolence and love for their species. These are as
much evidences of their exerted endeavor, as the indi-
vidual honor and fame that attaches to their names.

The early medical history may be accurately divided
into three epochs: one, anterior to 1834, whenindivid-
ual, isolated effort characterized the medical fraternity;
the second, from 1835 to 1844, when the varicus indi-
viduals commingled, established societies and medical

" sodalities ; and the third epoch, subsequent to the es-

tablishment of Rush Medical College in 1844, when
Chicago became a recognized center of medical instruc-
tion, and the alumniof this institution dispersed through-
out the country, carrying the impress of their a/ma
maler with them. :

But two additional items remain to be mentioned in
this chapter: one the names of three dentists, two
representative  Chicago men, Dr. Aaron Gibbs, who
came here about 1845; Dr. James Kennicott, who com-
menced dental practice about 1848, and John C. Pride,
a phenomenal dentist, who not alone extracted the of-
fending molar or incisor, but gave instruction in vocal
and pianc music, thorough-bass, etc., in the year 185z,
Also the name of John Webster deserves mention as
the first hydropathic physician announcing himself as
such in 1852 ; and W. Atkinson, in 1853, is the primal
“ confidential ” physician.

EarLy DruccisTs.—The second item concerns
those who provided the means, whereby the physicians
were enabled to combat disease. The earliest pharma-
ceutist of Chicago was Philo Carpenter, who arrived
here in July, 1832, shortly thereafter opening a variety
and drug store on what 1s now known as Lake Street,
near. the eastern bank of the river; and subsequently
removing to South Water Street. Early in 1833, Peter
Pruyne * and Edmund Stoughton Kimberly opened the
second of Chicage's drug-stores. William Hull Clarke
arrived in Chicage May 23, 1835, and opened a drug
store with Abram F. Clarke. Under date of November
1, 1835, this firm advertised that they have opened a
new drug store at the store formerly occupied by Kim-
ball & Porter,.corner of Water and Clark streets. This
firm subsequently removed to 10z Lake Street ; dissolv-
ing partnership’ March 1, 1841; W. H. entering "into
copartnership with Samuel C. Clarke, his brother, and
remaining with him until about 1850, About 1855, W.

“™H.@erke became assistant engineer of the Chicago

Board .of Public Works, which position he retained until
of s&%ﬁum 26, 1835, Mr, Peter Proyme married Rebeces. only danghter

" his death in August, 1878
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Frederick Thomas, in the
American of June 8, 1835, advertised che proprietorship
of the Chicago New Drug, Medical and Paint Store, on
Water Street, two doors from the American office, near
the drawbridge; and also advertised that he performed
“bleeding, leeching and tooth-drawing; ' thus estab-
lishing himself as Chicago’s first barber-surgeon. In
the American of January 16, 1836, under date of Janu-
ary 11, Mr. Thomas announced a copartnership with
Thomas Jenkins, at a new store on Lake Street, one
door west of Clark ; for the sale of dry goods, grocer-
ies, paints, drugs and medicines; but the advertisement
does not specify that the phlebotomical practice was
maintained. On April 2, 1836, the partnership was dis-
solved, Mr. Thomas retiring. The names of the other
early druggists are given in Fergus's directory of 1839:
Edward R. Allen and Leroy M. Boyce; Leroy M. Boyce
continuing the business alone at 12t Lake Street, July
10, 1840, and subsequently at 113 Lake Street; being
succeeded, in 1851, by J. Sears, Jr, and E. R. Bay.
Dr. E. Dewey, who advertised on July 1, 1840, asbeing
at Apothecaries’ Hall, Dearborn Street ; Nelson Bu-
chanan, and Sidney Sawyer, who were in business for a
number of years subsequent to 181g9.

RUSH MEDICAL COLLEGE,

The act of incorporation for this institution was
drawn by Drs. Daniel Brainard and Josiah C. Good-
hue ; was passed by the Legislature ; and approved by
the Governor on March 2, 1837. The Chicago Amer-

FIRST RUSH MEDICAL

COLLEGE.

ican of March 25, 1837, commenting thereupon, states
that *this act may be regarded as not the least of the
favors which Chicago has received at the hands of the
State. Being the first institution of the kind in Illinois,
or indeed west of Cincinnati and Lexington, -it must
soon possess advantages of location which but few
medical schools enjoy. With such a situation, if it re-
ceive the fostering care of the public, cannot fail to be-
come an ornament and an honor to our infant city.
The benefits resulting from the establishment of literary
and scientific institutions in a community are very

great,
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